
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

 DECEMBER 19, 2011 

BUSINESS MEETING 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / December 5, 2011   

                                                   Council Work Session minutes / December 12, 2011 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:    Annexation of Well Road Right-of-Way       

  

Location:                       Approximately one thousand three hundred and twenty-fur linear feet 

                        Of an unimproved portion of the right-of-way of Well Road and the 

                                       Northeast portion of the Gipson tract 

Recommendation:       Unanimous Favorable / Ordinance 2011-85 

 

                                                

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware    

          Review minutes / December 12
th
  

1.) Ordinances:       

a.) Court Personnel Restructure / Ordinance 2011-86 

b.) Main Street Resurfacing: Design Engineering / Ordinance 2011-87 

c.) Well Road Extension: Design Engineering /  Ordinance 2011-88 

d.) Appropriation of Funds: Museum Video Security System & Monitoring / Ordinance 2011-89 

 

2.) Resolutions: 

a.) Declare City Property Surplus / Resolution 2011-83 

b.) Declare City Property Surplus for Donation / Resolution 2011-84 

c.) Bid Award: 2012-A-FD/Natural Gas Generator / Energy systems Southeast, LLC /  

   Resolution 2011-85 

 

3.) Motion: 

 Approve going out for bid on the following road projects: 

 Main Street Resurfacing 

 Well Road Extension 

 

4.)   Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / November, 2011 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / October 31, 2011 

 Lodging Tax Collections, October 31, 2011  

 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake                  

          Review minutes / November 21
st
  

          Review minutes / December 5
th
  

 

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware    

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese 

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Lake     

          Review Beautification minutes / December 2
nd

  

 

 

 
1



COUNCIL  MEETING AGENDA                                DECEMBER 19, 2011                       PAGE  2    

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

          Review minutes / November 3
rd

  

 

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette        

    C.  Industrial Development Board –    

    D.  Library Board – Lake      

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette            

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese        

    G.  Utility Board - Scott   

 
6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report       

B. City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Approving City of Daphne Emergency Operations Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-82 

 

b.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-83 

 

c.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus / Donation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-84 

 

d.)  Bid Award: Natural Gas Generator / Energy Systems  

                            Southeast, LLC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-85 

 

         

  ORDINANCES: 

 

           1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Lodging Tax Funds: Mobile Bay National  

        Estuary Program. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-82 

 

b.)  Annexation: Well Road Right-of-Way . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-85 

  

c.)  Court Personnel Restructure. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-86 

 

d.)  Main Street-McAdams to Bayfront: Mill & Overlay Road 

Project: Design Engineering. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-87 

 

e.)   Well Road Extension: Design Engineering. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-88 

 

f.)    Appropriation of Funds: Daphne Museum/Cemetery  

        Video System & Monthly Monitoring Service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-89 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

 2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

3



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



DECEMBER 5, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given Reverend Charles Jackson. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning 

Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Richard 

Johnson, Publics Works Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Ashley 

Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Officer Mike Dawson, Police Department; Dorothy 

Morrison, Beautification Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Pfil 

Hunt, Gardnyr Michael Capital. 

 

Absent: Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the November 21, 2011 Council meeting minutes.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                           

                            

 

 

SWEARING IN:       Mrs. Tommie B. Conaway / Councilwoman for District  #1 / Judge Lyn Stuart 

 

Mrs. Conaway was sworn in by Judge Lyn Stuart while her husband held the Bible. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5



DECEMBER 5, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

Minutes for the November 21
st
 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve going out for bids for Public Works with the 

understanding that the bids will be submitted for review, approval and possible appropriation: 

 

                          2012 8-10 Yard Capacity Medium-Duty Dump Truck 

                                      2012 Mauldin Vibratory Roller Compactor (Tow behind) 

                                      2012 4-ton Asphalt Hotbox Reheater/Reclaimer 

                                      2012 Ford F-450-550 HD Service Truck with Crane 

 

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE     ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve going out for bid on the US 98 & Whispering 

Pines Road Intersection – Turn Lanes/Signalization which is a 50/50 cost split with ALDOT.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED  

 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

No report. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Lake 

No report. 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

There was an excellent article in the Press-Register regarding the Downtown Redevelopment 

Authority.  The chairman of the committee, Casey Zito, will be at the January meeting to give a report 

on the activities of the DRA. 

 6



DECEMBER 5, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

C. Industrial Development Board –  
The minutes for the November 28

th
 meeting are in the packet along with a financial statement. 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

No report. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Adrienne Jones 

The Site Review meeting will be Wednesday at 10:00 a.m. and the Planning Commission meeting will be 

December 15
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

No report. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The November meeting will be held December 7
th

 at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked Mr. Scott about the $10.00 charge to the Park City water customers by the 

Utility Board.  He asked Mr. Scott to check on it and e-mail him.  

 

Council President Barnette stated the Councilwoman Conaway will fill the position formerly held by 

Mayor Yelding on the Finance Committee, Public Works Committee and the IDB. 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

 

    B.  City Attorney Report 

No report, but at the next meeting he wants to give an update to council on four – five items.  

 

C. Department Head Comments 
Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that tomorrow is the Baldwin Pops Holiday 

Pops, and December 18
th

 is “The Forgotten Christmas Carols” tickets are on sale adults are $15.00 and 

students are $10.00.  Citizens can drop off toys for “Toys for Tots” at the Civic Center. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported that work has started on the Justice Center roof.  He asked 

citizens to be aware of their surrounds for the holiday season, and be aware of leaving their Christmas 

tree lighted while they are away, because it can be an invitation for thieves to come in and steal 

presents under the tree. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – thanked everyone that participated in the Christmas Parade. 

They had a successful Baldwin County tournament. 

 

Tonja Young – Library Director – announced that award winning author Wayne Flynt will be speaking at 

the Library December 7 at 10:00, and 73 children came on Friday December 2
nd

 to make ornaments, and on 

December 9
th
 they can come to make gifts.  Santa visits December 15

th
 5:00 -7:00 p.m. 7



DECEMBER 5, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

 

 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked Ms. Ciancetta for an update on the use of credit cards. 

 

Mayor Yelding stated that he had spoken to Mrs. Henson regarding this and she is fast tracking the 

process.  He asked Councilman Palumbo to be patient with them since Mrs. Briley has been out sick 

for some time. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – said that there was great participation in the Christmas 

Parade, and the participants in the Jingle Bell had a great time, and there were about 1,000 people on 

the lawn for this event.  The citizens had a great time. 

 

  

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke during public participation. 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 
a.) Acceptance of  Property / Cora Autry. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-80 

 

b.) Approving O&M Assessments within the  

     Renaissance Improvement District. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-81 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to waive the reading of Resolutions 2011-80.  Seconded 

by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2011-80.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPSOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to waive the reading of Resolution 2011-81.  Seconded by 

Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 8



DECEMBER 5, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2011-81.  Seconded by Councilman 

Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

      1
ST

 READ 
A.) Approve the Appropriation of Funds for the Purposes  

      Of Settlement (Sand Pit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-83 

  

B.) Appropriation of Funds: US Fish & Wildlife Grant. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-84 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2011-83 and 2011-84.  

Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

Councilman Palumbo requested the ordinances separately. 

 

Councilman Lake withdrew his motion. 

Councilman Boulware withdrew his second. 

     

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2011-83.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott.    

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway  Aye    Boulware  Aye 

Lake  Aye    Palumbo  Aye 

Reese  Aye    Barnette  Aye 

Scott  Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinances 2011-83. Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR            NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

 9



DECEMBER 5, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt  Ordinances 2011-83.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2011-84.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway Aye    Boulware  Aye 

Lake Aye    Palumbo  Aye 

Reese Aye    Barnette  Aye 

Scott Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

                                               
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-84.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-84.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mayor Yelding thanked council for filling that whole in the ground. He also congratulated the Recreation 

Department, the Public Works Department, the Police and Fire Departments for doing a terrific job for 

putting together, planning and executing the Christmas festivities that were absolutely great.  The open 

house was put together by the Recreation Department, and the tree lighting was taken care of by Public 

Works and the Beautification Committee, and it was a beautiful job.  The decorating in the city is done by 

the Public Works Department, and he thanked them for them.  It is beautiful.  The citizens were 

phenomenal, and he was really gratified by the amount of citizens that they had for the open house and tree 

lighting.  There were children everywhere, and it was beautiful.  This is for the citizens, and it was a very 

beautiful affair, and he wanted to compliment and thank all the Department Heads.   

 

Mrs. Conaway stated that she thoroughly enjoyed being a part of the parade.  She thanked the Council 

President for assisting her as far as coming on board she was very helpful. She is ready to hit the ground 

listening now everyone in District #1 and to the citizens of Daphne. 

 
10



DECEMBER 5, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 
Councilman Lake agreed with the Mayor’s comments on the parade.  He complimented the Beautification Committee 

on the decorations. 

 

Councilman Reese enjoyed participating in the Christmas festivities, and the Jingle Bell Run, it was a well done 

event. 

 

Councilman Scott said that he attended the S.E.E.D.S. Grant Presentation, and said that since their inception they 

have given out over $212,000 in grants to teachers.  He said that schools are important to the city, and they should 

always keep the schools as a top priority. 

 

Councilman Boulware recognized Mrs. Dorothy Morrison, and thanked her for all she does for the city.  He thanked 

the Department Heads for the Christmas Parade. He said that the community responds to this type of atmosphere. 

 

Councilman Palumbo thanked the Recreation, Fire, Police and Public Works Departments for the Christmas Parade.  

 

Council President Barnette agreed with everyone’s comments on the parade, tree lighting and open house are great 

ways to welcome in the season.  She appreciates the Mayor organizing a shuttle.  She commended the staff for a great 

job. 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                 

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

11



DECEMBER 12, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; 

Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo.   

 

Also present: Mayor Bailey Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City 

Clerk; Tonja Young Library Director; James White, Fire Chief; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance 

Director; Erick Bussey, Attorney. 

 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. COMMUNTIY CONTRIBUTIONS 

 

Mobile Bay National Estuary Program Contribution 
Mrs. Roberta Swann gave a presentation regarding support for the Mobile Bay National Estuary 

Program.  She reminded council of Mr. Lake’s suggestion of taking the funds from the Lodging Tax 

fund to support the program. She stated that they have received funds for Joe’s Branch. 

 

Mrs. Ashley Campbell stated that working with Mobile Bay National Estuary Program helps her get 

grants for projects by coordinating agencies to get funding for projects.  

 

Council asked questions of Mrs. Swann. 

 

No consensus. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that an issue came up in the Finance meeting before the work 

session that council needs to consider. 

 

     Pfil Hunt / Refinance Aronov Bond 

Mr. Hunt presented figures for refinancing the Aronov bond saying that the interest rates are in the 

city’s favor right now.  There would be a $200,000 per year savings which would be around five 

million dollars ($5,000,000) if they leave the maturity rates the same.  He said by shortening the 

maturity year by year until they run out of savings it would knock 10 years off with a savings of $7.8 

million gross.  He said all he needs to know from council is the time frame and whether or not to 

shorten the maturity rate. 

 

Council President Barnette stated they would need an ordinance for that, and asked Mr. Hunt if this 

needed to be done by the end of the month, and if the interest rates would go up? 

 

Mr. Hunt stated that he could not say if the interest rates would go up or not, and this does not have 

to be done by the end of the month.  They are ready to proceed at this time if council so desires. 

 

Council discussed including road projects with the refinancing. 

 

Consensus of council is that they are leaning toward option B shortening the maturity rates. 

 

 

12



DECEMBER 12, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 
Mr. Hunt suggested calling Standard & Pores to let them know the city’s capital needs have changed just to 

make sure the city’s rating won’t change. 

 

Mr. Hunt said that he will get with Mr. Ross, the Bond Attorney and the Public Works Director to discuss the 

capital project needs. 

 

 

Back to Community Contributions 

There is $2,000 left as undesignated funds.  Council President stated that they make a request of the Industrial 

Development Board to support either Blue Print for a Better Tomorrow, Mobile Bay National Estuary 

Program, Baldwin County Economic Alliance or the USS Alabama. 

 

Council discussed the new contribution requests, and those requesting additional funding. 

 

Council requested all letters requesting funding or additional funding, and the financial information from 

those requesting funds, and that finance research the legality of asking the IDB to cover some funding and e-

mail them to council. 

 

2. CITY INSURANCE: 
Mr. Palumbo wanted this to be considered because the current carrier, AMIC, is denying coverage for 

lawsuits.  He would like to consider other carriers since the renewal comes up in January for three (3) years 

coverage. 

 

Mr. Ross said that out of all the lawsuits against the city AMIC is not covering any of the claims.  He 

suggested contacting Robbie Robertson regarding other carriers. 

 

Councilman Scott stated that he will meet with staff to discuss options on insurance.  Mr. Ross stated that he 

will also meet with Mr. Scott and staff, and he would also talk with Mr. Robertson. 

 

Mayor Yelding stated that he is ok with them meeting with staff. 

  

 

3. ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Cathy S. Barnette,     

      Council President        

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

37



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

December 12, 2011 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:02 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware, Councilman Ron Scott, 
Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, and Accountant Donna 
Page. 
 
Finance Director Kim Briley was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Bailey Yelding, Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works 
Director Richard Johnson, Fire Chief James White, Police Lieutenant Ric Yelding, Building Maintenance 
Supervisor Frank Barnett, Human Resources Payroll/Benefits Coordinator Sherree Hilburn, and Municipal Court 
Administrator Leah Fort. 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Mr. Pfil Hunt, Gardnyr Michael Capital, Inc discussed the 2002 and 2006 bond refunding.  He presented 
comparisons showing  (1) savings of approximately $200,000 per year for a total of $5,019,881.25 if the maturity 
date remains the same at 2/1/2037; or (2) paying the debt off ten years early with annual costs increasing 
slightly, but totaling $7,870,615 in savings.  Mr. Hunt discussed that this is the time to take advantage of the 
lower interest rates and the City’s AA rating.  He stated he could get the final rate next Monday morning, call to 
confirm with the Council and lock the rate in.  He would then have the “Bond Purchase Agreement” ready for 
Monday night’s Council meeting.  
 
Mr. Scott noted that we currently do not have a legal obligation on the debt, but if it is refunded we will.  
However, he thinks the risk would be minimal and would be worth it.  He discussed going with option (1) to save 
the approximately $200,000 each year, but would like to see the annual savings committed to capital projects. 
 
Mr. Scott requested the Council discuss it at tonight’s work session, then forward to the next Council meeting. 
 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity  
 
Ms. Vickie Hinman presented the Human Resources activity update. Open positions include Public Service 
Worker (3), and part-time Firefighter (2) positions.  Interviews are on-going for the Revenue Tech position. 
  
The Safety Committee discussed Fire Exit Safety Program for Public Works – the Public Works Administrative 
Assistant has the layout of all PW buildings, offices and exit routes.  Fire Marshall, Chip Martin has reviewed 
and approved fire plans.  Supervisors are to be trained on exit procedures, reporting and accountability 
procedures and a fire drill will be performed in the near future.  There has been a citizen complaint of non-
accessibility to playground equipment because edging is higher than the fall zone material.  Recreation has 
requested a purchase order for ramps to install at parks.  The next meeting will be Wednesday, December 14, 
2011, at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Ms. Hinman reported on the following HR department projects:  
 Directors/Supervisors Performance Review Training – January 12 & 18 

Harassment Training for Civic Center Employees – November 21 
 

Ms. Sherree Hilburn discussed the meeting on November 21 and report from the AMIC Loss Control 
Representative, Richard Buttenshaw.  She stated that our Exp Mod has decreased steadily over the last five 
years from 1.02 to .77; noting that lower is better - anything under one is good. Ms. Hilburn credited the Safety 38



Finance Minutes - 2011-12-12.doc  2  

Committee for helping lower the City’s rating.  One concern of Mr. Buttenshaw’s is the sewer lift station located 
behind the City’s Fire Station, and determining if it is on City or Utility Board property.  Mr. Richard Johnson 
stated that it has been determined that it is on public utility easement of private land, so is not on City property. 
 
B.  Court Personnel Restructure 
 
Ms. Hinman discussed the request from Judge Kenneth Hitson to restructure Court from three to two positions, 
eliminating the open position of Magistrate.  This would leave one Magistrate and one Court Administrator.  
Judge Hitson would then like to see the salaries for these two positions raised since their work load has 
increased.  His projections would save the City $9,125 annually.  Human Resources and the Mayor have 
suggested eliminating the third position and increasing the salaries of the remaining two, but at a lower rate for a 
net savings of $19,927.13 annually. 
 
Mr. Boulware stated that if the department heads think they can restructure with less personnel he thinks it’s a 
good idea to empower the department heads to compromise.  It was discussed that our personnel handbook 
allows 2-step increases only; any more has to be by approved by ordinance. 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council authorize the Mayor and Judge Hitson to 
present an Ordinance for Council’s approval to restructure Court by eliminating one 
position and increasing the salaries of the remaining two positions.  Seconded by Ms. 
Conaway.  Motion carried. 
 
 
IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  November 30, 2011 
 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $18,790,779.43 was presented. Ms. Henson noted that the information Mr. Scott 
had requested at the last meeting showing the previous years same month total was listed at the bottom of the 
Treasurer’s Report. 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of November 30,,  2011, in the 
amount of $18,790,779.43.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Sales and Use Taxes: October 31, 2011 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for October 2011    -   $864,731 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for October 2011    -   $817,268             
Over Budget (for October)                                    -    $  47,463 
 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $47,463  
 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, October 2011  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $52,002 collected for October, 2011 
 
4.  Report: New Business Licenses – November 2011 
 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in November was presented.   
 
5.  Bills Paid Reports – October 2011 
 
The November Bills Paid Report for FY 2011 was included in Packet #2 and the November Bills Paid Report for 
FY 2012 was included in Packet #2-A.  
 

39



Finance Minutes - 2011-12-12.doc  3  

B.  Appropriation Request  
 
1.  General Fund - 
 

 Daphne Museum Video Security System - $3,990 +$500 Monitoring / Total $4,490 
 

A request to install a video security system at the Daphne Museum due to vandalism at the cemetery 
was presented.  Total cost, including installation is $3,990, plus a $50 per month monitoring fee.  Ms. 
Henson noted that $500 would be needed for monitoring for the remainder of FY12 Budget year.  Mr. 
Scott asked about ownership of the property, and it was determined that the City has a 99 year lease on 
the property. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $4,490 
for a video security system and monitoring for the Daphne Museum.  Seconded by Ms. 
Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
2.  Lodging Tax -  

 
 Bayfront Roof ($29,995) & Insulation ($12,768) - $42,763  (Review Encumbered monies available - 

$57,317, see Motion made at October 17
th
 Council Meeting) 

 
Quotes for installation of a metal roof of $29,995 from Weather Guard Metal Roofing, and $12,768 for 
insulation of the subfloor from Profoam of South Alabama were discussed.  Mr. Frank Barnett noted that 
the roof is 12 to 15 years old and does have leaks.  Ms. Henson noted the $57,317 encumbered monies 
available for these repairs and asked Mr. Barnett if any other repairs were pending on these funds.  Mr. 
Barnett noted all other previous repairs had been completed. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating the funds 
necessary from Lodging Tax after verifying the balance of the encumbered funds, up 
to $42,763, to replace the roof and insulate the sub-floor at Bayfront.  Seconded by Ms. 
Conaway.   Motion carried. 
NOTE:  Encumbered Funds are available for the requested repairs - $42,763 

 
3.  Capital Reserve – Road Projects 
 

A. Main Street Resurfacing : 
 Appropriation Request - Design Only for Bid - $25,815 
 Bid Request – Total Project Cost Estimate - $499,075 
 
Ms. Henson noted that the total engineering cost for the project is estimated to be $71,838, that the 
$25,815 portion is for design to go out to bid.  Mr. Johnson noted that this includes resurfacing 
approximately 2.54 miles from McAdams Avenue to Bayfront Drive. 

 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $25,815 
from Capital Reserve for a design for bid for the Main Street Resurfacing of 2.54 miles 
from McAdams Avenue to Bayfront Drive and to allow staff to put the project out for 
bid.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 

 
B.  Well Road Extension : 

 Appropriation Request - Design Only for Bid- $ 21,930 
 Bid Request – Total Project Cost Estimate -  $196,597 

 
Ms. Henson noted the total engineering cost for this project is estimated to be $52,330 with the 
requested $21,930 being for design for bid only.  Discussion was made that this is .265 miles of new 
road and drainage from Public Works Road to County Road 13.  Mr. Scott asked if the City would have 
to purchase any right-of-ways.  Mr. Johnson stated we would not, but would perhaps have to have some 
surveys done, which would be included in the engineering costs.  

40



Finance Minutes - 2011-12-12.doc  4  

 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $21,930 
from Capital Reserve for a design for bid for the Well Road extension of .265 miles 
from Public Works Road to County Road 13 and to allow staff to put the project out for 
bid.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
  
C.  Bid  
 
2012-A-FD / NATURAL GAS GENERATOR 
 
Three bid invitations were sent out, with one sealed bid received.  Ms. Henson noted that this generator is for 
the fire training facility on Stanton Road recently constructed, and the cost will be reimbursed to the City by the 
Daphne Volunteer Firefighters Association.  Staff recommends the bid from Energy Systems Southeast LLC in 
the amount of $25,238 be accepted.  (Note:  The agreement for the Volunteer Firefighters to refund the City for 
this project has been previously approved) 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding bid 2012-A-
FD/NATURAL GAS GENERATOR to Energy Systems Southeast LLC in the amount of 
$25,238, to be paid for by the Daphne Volunteer Firefighters Association.  Seconded by 
Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
 

D.  FY 2012 Personnel & Capital Requests List 
 
Mr. Scott stated that he did not think the capital requests could be considered until the reserve balance at the 
end of FY 2011 is known.  Ms. Ciancetta noted that general fund revenues were budgeted at $21,663,877 for 
FY 11, and to date total $22,228,531, and capital expenditures for FY 11 total $1,002,480.  Ms. Ciancetta stated 
she would be working on closing September, for year end pre-close numbers.   Mr. Johnson stated that the 
need for the additional positions he originally requested in Streets and Grounds have changed, and he is not 
requesting any additional positions for FY 2012.  
 
 

E.  Declare City Property Surplus: 
 
The following equipment was presented for surplus: 
 
Dept   Tag/Veh#      Description          Vin# / Serial #                     
 
Parks   1003  1600 John Deere Wing Mower TC1600T0203662  
Parks   1180  Bush Hog   12-07880 
Parks   247  Mill Creek Top Dresser  TD3320 
Grounds  1089  2004 Toro Push Mower  240113325 
Grounds  1090  2004 Toro Push Mower  240113384 
Grounds  924  2002 Mantis Tiller  286328     
 
Ms. Henson noted that the Library Book Drop Box is being requested to be donated to a small municipality that 
has a need for it. 
 

Library Book Drop Box  
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to dispose of such property as for sale and 
donation as requested. Seconded by Ms. Conaway.  Motion carried. 
 
 

41



Finance Minutes - 2011-12-12.doc  5  

V.    OLD BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Henson noted that our insurance policies will be up for renewal in February 2012, and the rates we had 
locked in for three years with a discount.  Mr. Scott discussed the need to get quotes from multiple sources to be 
sure we get the best rates.  Mayor Yelding asked Ms. Ciancetta to get pricing from at least three different 
companies. 
 
VI. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:30 p.m. 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, November 21, 2011   5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 
 

Committee 
Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Derek Boulware 
Mayor Bailey Yelding, JR. 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

 
Committee Minutes (Summary) 

 
Present:  Councilman Derek Boulware, Councilman John Lake, Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 
Director; Jane Ellis, Mayor’s Assistant; Al Guarisco 
 

A.) Minutes from November Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from October 
Meeting.  Approved.   

 
B.) Items B thought E deferred to December Meeting – 

BRAG Facility  

Daphne Museum 

Baryfront Roof & Insulation Project 

Booth Property 

 
C.) Civic Center Report – Margaret distributed her revenue comparison report for Civic 

Center and Bayfront facilities (attached).  Report of upcoming events through end of 
year and also she and David McKelroy, Parks & Recreation Director are working on 
obtaining the Alabama High school Athletic Director’s & Coaches Meeting.  Have booked 
the Master Gardener Conference for 2014.   
 
Derek inquired about eh 5013c status and where we are in getting information on that 
possibility. Margaret indicated that the City of Mobile was the only municipality in the 
area with that status and she was researching that. 
 
Discussion about the dance floor and how it is coming apart and they are unable to use 
for safety reasons.  The Ballroom Dance recently was on the Civic Center floor and there 
were no complaints – in fact some preferred it.  
 
Bayfront stairs should be complete by end of December.  

123



Margaret asked that the proposal for the roof and insulation additions to Bayfront be 
moved to Finance and not deferred to next meeting.  The quotes were obtained by 
Frank and in fact we are able to get both of these items fixed for what we thought we 
would just spend on the roof.   Motion was made that the committee recommends the 
expense of $29,995 for roof and $12,768 for insulation move to the next Finance 
Committee for approval.  Lodging tax dollars can be used for this improvement. 
 

D.) Building Department Reports – No representation but hard copies of report were 
distributed. 
 
F.  New Business-Al Guarisco was present and there was discussion about the cemetery 
next to the Daphne Museum and the need for a security and monitoring system because 
of vandalism.  Frank obtained quote of $3990 for installation and it would run about $50 
per month for service.  Motion was made that we go ahead and not table this item and 
move to the next Finance Committee meeting for approval of this expense.  
 
Al also mentioned that there was a terrible flea problem at the museum.  Jane will get 
with Frank Barnett to address.  
 

 
 

Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 

124



125



126



127



District 1 
Dorothy Morrison, 
Chair 
 
District 2 
Carolyn Coleman 
Marilyn O’Connor- 
Moore 
Bea Wilson 
 
District 3 
 
District 4 
Selena Vaughn,  
Secretary 
 
District 5 
David Dueitt 
Patty Kearney 
 
District 6 
Elaine Maxime 
 

District 7 
Rebecca Trosclair 
 
City Liaisons 
Margorie Bellue 
Richard Johnson 
Dwayne Coley 
David McKelroy 
Denise Penry 
Pat Albert 

 

December 2, 2011 Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 

In attendance:  

Pat Albert, Margorie Bellue, Dwayne Coley, Jane Ellis, Michele Hanson, Richard 

Johnson, Elaine Maxime, David McKelroy, Marilyn O’Connor Moore, Denise Penry, 

Rebecca Trosclair, Selena Vaughn, Tomasina Werner, Bea Wilson, Mayor Yelding 
 

 
 

Richard gave an update on the road improvements in Lake Forest and the plans 

for Main Street. Mayor Yelding asked that PW consider extending the improve-

ments to  Van rather than stopping at McAdams. 

 

Compliments were given both to Public Works for the holiday decorations and to 

Pat Albert for another successful year working with local students to make the 

ornaments for the tree in City Hall. ($190 was spent and we had 394 ornaments) 

 

An update is needed from Parks and Recreation before the our meeting on a 

schedule for making the requested park improvements discussed back in  

October. 

 

A meeting is needed for PW, Parks and DBC to discuss the schedule for May Day 

Park planting. Meeting is scheduled for next Wednesday morning at Parks. 

 

Marjorie gave an update on Mardi Gras decorations and Arbor Day. The trees are 

ordered and the paperwork for the Tree City application is underway. For Arbor 

Day, the following people are to assist Marjorie by helping in the planning for: 

Dwayne—mulch give-away, Dorothy-girl scouts, Selena-high school volunteers, 

Master Gardeners, proclamation and Daphne Utilities. 

 

Dwayne will get an estimate for more bulbs needed and the cost for more  

poinsettias and a replacement deer for the missing one at Centennial. 

 

The next Beautification award will be in District 1 in January.  

 

Public Works Report: PW has completed their part in the Daphne Utilities park 

project across from Gator Alley. Median Crossovers are still in planning approval. 

The publicity for the Longhorn Beautification was submitted by Denise Last 

month. 

 

Pat discussed the mural project bringing up that we have a couple of buildings 

such as Leon’s and the Eastern Shore Café willing to host a mural. Volunteer  

artists are needed. 

 

A presentation was made by Mayor Yelding who read a proclamation of  

appreciation to retiring volunteer Tomasina Werner. 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 
 

 

128



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

142



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

143



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

144



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION 2011-82 

 

APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPNE, ALABAMA’S EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 

PLAN, AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO IMPLEMENT THE 

PLAN 

 

WHEREAS,  the Alabama Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) requires each jurisdiction 

to develop, maintain and revise as necessary an Emergency Operations Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, Daphne’s Emergency Management Coordinator is responsible for 

developing and maintaining the city’s EOP; and 

  

WHEREAS, plans written after October 2005 must be consistent with the National 

Incident Management System (NIMS) which has been incorporated into this plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, in November 2010 the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 

issued Comprehensive Preparedness Guide (CPG) 101 – Developing and Maintaining 

Emergency Operation Plans.  This EOP conforms to the guidance contained in CPG 101; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne formed a Core Planning Team with City Departments 

and governmental and none-governmental agencies to participate in a collaborative process to 

develop the EOP; and 

 

WHEREAS, the EOP is comprised of the following components: 1) Introductory 

Material; 2) Basic Plan; 3) Lead and Support Agency Annexes; 4) Functional and Hazard 

Specific Annexes; 5) and Supporting Appendices; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Emergency Management Coordinator, Department Heads or their 

designee, and the EOP Core Planning Team have reviewed the EOP, participated in a Table Top 

Exercise and submitted changes that have been incorporated into this plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne Emergency Operations Plan is being submitted to the 

City Council for adoption. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA that the Emergency Operations Plan be adopted and to direct 

the Mayor to implement the plan.  Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized to approve future 

necessary revisions  

145



RESOLTUION 2011-82       ADOPT EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN                PAGE  2 

 

to the EOP and approve updates to Departmental Annexes and Functional and Hazard Specific 

Annexes as may be needed to supplement/update the Emergency Operations Plan. 

 

ADOPTED ANDAPPROVED this _______ day of ___________, 2011. 

 

 

      CITY OF DAPHNE, 

      A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette, 

      Council President 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

      Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

David L. Cohen,  

City Clerk, MMC 

 

  

 

146



RESOLUTION 2011 - 83 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 
Parks 1003 1600 John Deere Wing Mower TC1600T0203662 
Parks 1180 Bush Hog 12-07880 
Parks 247 Mill Creek Top Dresser TD3320 
Grounds 1089 2004 Toro Push Mower 240113325 
Grounds 1090 2004 Toro Push Mower 240113384 
Grounds 924 2002 mantis Tiller 286328 

    
 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2011. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

147



RESOLUTION 2011 - 84 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING DISPOSITION 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the Library Department of the City of Daphne has determined that a Library Book 
Drop Box is no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS,  such Library Book Drop Box listed below is beyond it’s useful life for the City of 
Daphne; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Library Department has been made aware that this Library Book Drop Box could 
be utilized by a smaller Library; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Library Book Drop Box will be donated  “AS IS” and without warranty of any kind, 
express, or implied, and recipient will release, acquit, and hold the City harmless for any and all 
claims for damages, causes of action, for any purpose; 
 

WHEREAS, this Library Book Drop Box is recommended for disposal; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  

 
1- The following property is hereby declared to be surplus:     

 
Library Book Drop Box – Green Book   

 
and 

 
2- The Mayor is authorized to direct the disposition of the above listed property to another 

Library. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2011. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

________________________________ 

                                                                              Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 
 

148



RESOLUTION NO.  2011-85 

2012-A-FD/NATURAL GAS GENERATOR 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the NATURAL 
GAS GENERATOR will exceed this amount; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the NATURAL GAS GENERATOR 
and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the NATURAL GAS GENERATOR be 
awarded to Energy Systems Southeast, LLC 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Energy Systems Southeast, LLC for a cost of $25,238 per 
generator as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO: 2012-A-FD/NATURAL GAS 
GENERATOR. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of             , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                     
________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
          

     
                                                                                                                                                                                         

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
          
 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 
 
 

149



ORDINANCE 2011-82 
 
 

Mobile Bay National Estuary Program 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 budget does include an appropriation to the 
Mobile Bay National Estuary Program (MBNEP) in the amount of $3,000; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the MBNEP is instrumental in addressing environmental challenges in 
Daphne through its various programs and grants made available to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to make an additional $7,000 contribution to the MBNEP. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds from the Lodging Tax fund are hereby appropriated and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget in the amount of $7,000 for a contribution to 
the MBNEP.  Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized to execute an agreement, on 
behalf of the City of Daphne, as necessary for such purpose.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

150



ORDINANCE NO. 2011-85  
 

FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS  

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

 Well Road 

(Located Approximately One Thousand Three Hundred and Twenty-Four Linear Feet of 

an Unimproved portion of the Right-of-Way of Well Road and the Northeast Portion of the 

Gipson Tract) 

 
  

 BE IT ORDAINED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of the property described in Section 2 of this Ordinance have signed and 

filed a written petition with the City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, requesting that such property 

be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, all of such property is located and contained within an area contiguous to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and does not lie within the corporate limits or police 

jurisdiction of any other municipality; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition contains an accurate description of the property or territory proposed 

to be annexed together with a map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City of Daphne; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne 

on September 22, 2011 and a affirmative recommendation was approved for the City Council to consider 

said request for annexation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on 

December 19, 2011 concerning the petition for annexation; and, 

  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has determined that it is in the 

best interest of said City that the property described in Section 2 hereof be annexed to the corporate limits 

of the City of Daphne, and that all the requirements of Sections 11-42-21 through 11-42-24, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, as amended have been complied with by said Petitioner. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1: CONSENT TO ANNEXATION. The City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama does by this Ordinance assent to the annexation of the property described in Section 2 of this 

Ordinance to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, and does by the adoption of this 

Ordinance, extend and rearrange said corporate limits to embrace and include such property. 

 

 SECTION 2: THE PROPERTY. That property requested to be annexed into the City of Daphne 

is described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this Ordinance as if fully set out herein. 

 
 SECTION 3: MAP OF PROPERTY. The property hereby annexed to the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, is set forth and described in Exhibit "B" and attached hereto a map of the property showing its 

relationship to the corporate limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this 

Ordinance. 

 

 151



ORDINANCE 2011-85                      ANNEXATION: WELL ROAD                       PAGE  2 

 

 

 

 SECTION 4: PUBLICATION. This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-

21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, upon such publication. 

 

 SECTION 5: PROBATE COURT.  A description of the property described in this Ordinance 

shall be filed in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama, as required by Section 

11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended.  

 

 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

Commencing at the southwest corner of the southeast quarter of section 16, township 5 south, 

range 2 east; thence run n-00°21’08”-e, 2589.01 feet to the point of beginning; thence run s-

89°48’42”-e 14.69 feet to a point; thence northeasterly along a curve having a radius of 3562.47 

feet, a delta angle of 05°39’14”, the chord of which bears n-87°20’11”-e, 351.40 feet, an arc 

distance of 351.54 feet to a point; thence run n-89°41’15”-w 453.45 feet to a point; thence run n-

00°21’08”-e ±32.74 feet to a point on the north rights-of-way of well road (a 60 foot rights-of-

way); thence run west ±1324.00 feet to a point; thence run south ±60.00 feet to a point on the 

south rights-of-way line of well road; thence run east ±1324.00 feet to the point of beginning, 

containing 2.01 acres, more or less. 

 

 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _____ day of _____________, 2011. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President 
        

 

 

                                                                                            ____________________________________                                                               

       Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 
        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen, 

City Clerk, MMC 

152



Ordinance 2011-86 
Court Personnel Restructure: 

An Ordinance Approving Court Approved Positions & Pay Step Change  
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget on 
November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 budget does include an appropriation three (3) 
positions: (1) Administrator and  (2) Magistrates; and 
 
WHEREAS, there has been a vacancy in one of the Magistrate’s positions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the restructuring of Court’s personnel was evaluated and it was found that a 
savings could be obtained if the additional duties were reassigned between the remaining 
two positions with the following change made in Step increases:   
 
         Grade   

 Municipal Court Administrator - Grade17:   From Step 2 to Step   9  
 Municipal Court Magistrate    – Grade 12:   From Step 4 to Step 13  

 
Furthermore, be it ordained that the Magistrate position is no longer to be funded or 
filled until such time as the City Council determines necessary.  
 

FY2012 Cost Reduction $19,927. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: the one Magistrate position be eliminated in the Court department and 
the two remaining Court positions receive the step increases designated above for a 
total savings for the FY2012 Budget of $19,927. 

 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
______ day of ___________, 2012. 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Cathy Barnette, Council President 
      
     __________________________________ 
     Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

153



ORDINANCE 2011-87 
 
 

Main Street–McAdams to Bayfront:  Mill & Overlay Road Project:  Design 
Engineering 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Main Street – McAdams to Bayfront: Mill & Overlay Road project  
( 2.54 miles) and the project needs to go out for bid; and 
 
WHEREAS,  design engineering services in the amount of $25,815 is required to 
prepare the project for bid (with total engineering estimate if project approved: $71,838) ; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to obtain bids for this project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds  from the Capital Reserve Fund are hereby appropriated and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget in the amount of $25,815 for 
Engineering Design services for the Main Street – McAdams to Bayfront: Mill & 
Overlay Road project.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

154



ORDINANCE 2011-88 
 
 

Well Road Extension:  Design Engineering 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Well Road needs to be extended from Public Works Road to County 
Road 13 ( .265 miles) and the project needs to go out for bid; and 
 
WHEREAS,  design engineering services in the amount of $21,930 is required to 
prepare the project for bid (with total engineering estimate if project approved: $52,330) ; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to obtain bids for this project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds  from the Capital Reserve Fund are hereby appropriated and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget in the amount of $21,930 for 
Engineering Design services for the Well Road Extension road project.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

155



ORDINANCE 2011-89  
 
 

Daphne Museum/Cemetery: Video Security System & Monthly Monitoring 
Service Appropriation 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to vandalism at the Daphne Museum/Cemetery a Video Security 
System needs to be installed; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Video Security System will assist in stopping vandalism. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $4,490 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the Video Security 
System and monthly monitoring service. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this           day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

156


	AGENDA - December 19.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - December 5.pdf
	Council Work Session Minutes - December 12.pdf
	PC Letter for Public Hearing.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Finance Minutes - 2011-12-12.pdf
	Backup to Finance Minutes.pdf
	Buildings & Property Minutes - 11-21-11.pdf
	Buildings & Property Minutes. - 12-5-11pdf.pdf
	Beautification Minutes.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	BZA Minutes.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2011-82 - RES - ADOPTING THE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN.pdf
	2011-83 - RES - GOVDEALS COM               .pdf
	2011-84 - RES - Donation of Surplus Property.pdf
	2011-82 - ORD - $7,000 -  MBNEP.pdf
	2011-85 - ORD - Annexation - Well Road Annextation.pdf
	2011-85 - RES - Natural Gas Generator-2011.pdf
	2011-86 - ORD - Court Restructure-Pay Step Change.pdf
	2011-87 - ORD - Main Street-McAdams Ave-BF - Design Engineering.pdf
	2011-88 - ORD - Well Road - Design Engineering.pdf
	2011-89 - ORD - Museum Video Security Camera - Monitoring.pdf



